ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 2, 2014
8:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 216

"An Act relating to sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness
and prevention efforts in public schools; establishing a task
force in the Council on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 162(EDC) AM
"An Act relating to tenure of public school teachers; and
providing for an effective date."
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 216
SHORT TI TLE. SEXUAL ABUSE/ ASSAULT PREVENTI ON PROGRANMS
SPONSOR(s): RULES

03/ 28/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 28/ 14 (S) EDC, FIN

03/ 31/ 14 (S) EDC WAIVED PUBLIC HEARI NG NOTI CE, RULE
23

04/ 02/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: HB 162

SHORT TI TLE: TEACHER TENURE

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2014



SPONSOR(s): T. W LSON

03/11/13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 11/ 13 (H) EDC

03/ 22/ 13 (H EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 13 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 27/ 13 (H EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 27/ 13 (H Moved CSHB 162(EDC) OQut of Conmittee

03/ 27/ 13 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 28/ 13 (H EDC RPT CS(EDC) 3DP 4NR

03/ 28/ 13 (H) DP: SADDLER, P.WLSON, GATTIS

03/ 28/ 13 (H) NR. LEDOUX, DRUMVOND, REINBOLD, SEATON

04/ 04/ 13 (H AM NO 3 TABLED Y28 N8 E4

04/ 04/ 13 (H) PASSAGE OF BILL NOT IN ORDER MOTI ON
W THDRAWN

04/ 04/ 13 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 04/ 13 (H) VERS| ON:  CSHB 162( EDC) AM

04/ 05/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 05/ 13 (S) EDC

03/ 31/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

03/ 31/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 14 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

04/ 02/ 14 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

AMY SALTZMAN, Staff

Senator Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 216 on behal f of the sponsor.

SENATOR LESI L MCGUI RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 216.

LAUREE MORTON, Executive Director

Council on Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to SB 216.

JESSI CA LAMASTER, Executive Director

Haven House
Honmer, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 216.

FLORA RODDY, Menber

Educati on Support Staff Association

Fai rbanks North Star School District

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 216.

CAREN ROBI NSON, Executive Director

Al aska Wnen's Lobby

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 216.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 162.

DI ANE H RSHBERG, Director

Center for Al aska Education Policy Research

Institute of Social and Econom c Research (1 SER)

Uni versity of Al aska- Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to HB 162.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:00:49 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Gardner, Stedman, Huggins, Dunleavy, and
Chair Stevens.

SB 216- SEXUAL ABUSE/ ASSAULT PREVENTI ON PROGRANMS

8:01: 21 AM
CHAI R STEVENS announced the consideration of SB 216. He noted
that version N was before the commttee.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY noved to adopt the CS for SB 216, |abeled 28-
LS1617\ N, as the working docunent before the commttee.

CHAI R STEVENS obj ected for di scussion purposes.

AMY  SALTZMAN, Staff, Senator Lesil McCuire, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, presented SB 216 on behalf of the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2014



sponsor. She said the only change in version Nis the renoval of
the task force. She read the sponsor statenent:

SB 216, or FErin's Law, addresses a devastating
epidemc of child abuse. It will help to enpower our
comunities by educating children, par ents, and
teachers, and give them the opportunity to speak out.
This bill does this by requiring school districts to
devel op age-appropriate sexual abuse and assault
awar eness and prevention from age kindergarten through
twel fth grade. This bill is part of a national effort
that has been spearheaded by Erin Merryn, an advocate
and sexual abuse survivor. She has nade it her m ssion
to enact this legislation in all fifty states. To
date, there are versions of Erin's Law that have been
enacted in eight states. Twenty-five states, including
Al aska, are considering a version of the bill.

M5. SALTZVMAN related that Erin Merryn, sponsor of the bill,
recently visited Alaska. She noted testinony by M. Merryn
available to the commttee. She shared statistics, noting the
devastating problem of sex abuse in Al aska.

8:04:41 AM

SENATOR LESIL MCGQUI RE, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SB 216, introduce a video of the witer of the bill
Erin Merryn. In the video, Ms. Merryn shared her personal story
and the reasons she has brought forth the bill. She listed the
reasons that she nmade it her mssion to ensure that all states
have a law that requires school districts to develop age-
appropriate sexual abuse and assault awareness and prevention
from ki ndergarten through twel fth grade.

8:10: 56 AM

She said that kids are not taught about the people they know and
trust that can hurt them She referred to the Jerry Sandusky
story. She shared statistics about the survivors of sexual
abuse. She said she has nmade it her |life mssion to nake her
voice heard and turn her experience into a positive situation.
She nmintained that sexual abuse is a national epidemc. She
shared that she found her voice when she discovered her sister
was al so bei ng abused.

She related that there are 26 states that are considering this
| egislation. She said that health teachers, counselors, and
psychol ogists in schools can provide this curriculum as they
have been doing in Anchorage for 15 years. She hoped the |aw

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2014



will end the horror of child abuse. She urged support for the
bill.
8:15: 50 AM

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked t he sponsor.

SENATOR MCGUIRE said Ms. Merryn is a remarkable person and a
survivor. She enphasized that educating young people does work.
She listed several conponents of the curriculum She said Al aska
| eads the nation in child abuse. Under Title 18, educators are
already trained in domestic violence awareness and sexual
assault and it is appropriate to train teachers in this subject.

8:18:48 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE spoke of other training progranms for other
subjects in school curriculum but the lack of training about
sexual abuse. She described a case in Illinois where after the
"swinmsuit" lesson was taught, six kids told the health teacher
that they had been the victins of sexual abuse. She said the
consequences of sexual abuse |eads to drug abuse, incarceration,
and ot her problens. She stressed that we need to do all that we
can to prevent sexual abuse from happening. She encouraged
| egislators to pass the bill.

8.22:21 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked why Al aska | eads the nation

SENATOR MCGUI RE related that northern climates |ead the nation
in sex abuse, alcohol and drug addiction, and suicide rates.
Al so, i sol ati on, which Al aska has, makes it easy for
perpetrators. High levels of drug and al cohol addictions lead to
a higher rate of sexual abuse and assault. She noted sone of the
solutions to these problenms are found in the healing of
addi ctions, providing hope for economc opportunities, having
saf e houses, and adopting prevention curricul um

8:25:51 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS questioned whether treatnment is effective for
sex abusers.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE said the recidivismrate of child sexual assault

is very high - above 80 percent. Oegon has had sone success
with a containment program using electronic nonitors and lie
detector tests. Recidivismrates are |lower wth younger people,
but still not good. By the tinme perpetrators are caught, the

odds that they have assaulted many nore children is very high.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2014



SENATOR HUGE NS asked if those who abuse were abused.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE said she has read a lot of literature on this
subj ect. She concurred that this is alnbst always the case. The
cycle of abuse repeats itself, which highlights why intervention
is needed early on. Abusers becone perpetrators and the cycle
repeats, especially in Alaska with al cohol addiction and abuse.

8:30:46 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the gender factor

SENATOR MCGUI RE said overwhelnmngly it is males who are the
perpetrators. Seldom do wonen abuse. Males are the perpetrators
agai nst both young wonen and young nen. She voi ced appreciation
for the leadership of legislators to help break the cycle of
vi ol ence.

8:33: 05 AM
CHAI R STEVENS asked how parents can help pronote this nessage.

SENATOR MCGUI RE conmented that sone parents are not involved in
their child s education and lives. She said parents need to be
part of the conversation. She suggested age-appropriate PSA' s.
She said she is open to adding nore ideas for involving parents
on page 2, line 5.

8:36: 44 AM
SENATOR HUGG NS noted that some parents prefer that their
chil dren not be exposed to sexual abuse prevention.

SENATOR MCGUI RE understood that parents are allowed to opt out
of sex education and the bill's curriculumwould fall under that
cat egory.

CHAIR STEVENS pointed out that a parent could be the
per petrator.

SENATOR MCGUIRE agreed it is a conplex issue. She said PSA s
m ght work. She noted it is a crinme of silence, as M. Merryn
st at ed.

8:39:43 AM

SENATOR GARDNER t al ked about how kids are put in the position of
protecting their famly. It is not unusual for parents to also
be victins. She noted denial is generational. Allow ng parents
to opt out might inpact a child s ability to hear an inportant
| esson. She opined that the | essons could be taught delicately.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2014



SENATOR HUGGE NS said he supports the bill, but sone people are
not delicate. He said he is sensitive to parental prerogative.

CHAIR STEVENS wi shed to work nore on parental involvenent and
parental rights.

8:42: 42 AM

LAUREE MORTON, Executive Director, Council on Donestic Violence
and Sexual Assault, Departnent of Public Safety, Juneau, Al aska,
presented information related to SB 216. She shared that the
Council helps to develop curricula for these topics. She shared
information about an initiative that started |ast year through
the Governor's Choose Respect Initiative, where the Network on
Donmestic Violence and Sexual Assault and the Council went out
into the state and held focus groups of parents. They asked how
they could support parents in having conversations with their
children and create a safer space for them She handed out a
brochure with a canpaign slogan of "Talk Now, Talk Oten" to
help parents get famliar with what is going on in their Kkids'
lives. The questions in the brochure get the conversation going.
Future questions wll be nore sensitive in nature. She
enphasi zed that there are parents who are interested in hel ping
their children cope with unsafe situations. She noted a website
with the same nane.

M5. MORTON nentioned a conference in Anchorage that provided
various educational prograns to parents and teachers. She said
the current |aw says "encourages" such progranms; Erin's Law will
"require" them She said the departnment stands ready to assist
school districts wth skills developnent for teaching the
curriculum She understood that cost is a concern to districts.
She offered that on the Ofice of Children's Services website
there is curriculum called "Reporting Child Abuse in Alaska," a
| esson for nmandated reporters of child abuse.

M5. MORTON related that for the past six nonths, a workgroup
made up of the Council, the Network, DEED, DHSS, the Association
of Al aska School Boards, and other community representatives has
been | ooking at K-5 curriculum The goal is to come up with two
to three choices of best practices for the state. There are
evi dence-based <curricula available nationally. She said the
"Fourth R' - relationships - 1is the nane of a Canadian,
evi dence-based curriculum for students in grades 7 - 9 that has
been adapted for use in Alaska schools. Over 53 schools have
sent teachers for this training. Selected schools are being
evaluated for this project and this sunmmer the findings will be

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2014



avai l able. She <concluded that the Council has been very
t hought f ul about encour agi ng districts in i npl enenti ng
curricul a.

8:50: 20 AM
CHAI R STEVENS asked who are nandat ed reporters.

M5. MORTON said that there is a list wunder Title 47 that
i ncludes teachers, health care professionals, victim service
provi ders, police officers, and others. She offered to provide
that information

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about bul | yi ng.

M5. MORTON agreed it is a serious problem There are peer
educators who are good nentors to younger students. "Coaching
Boys into Men" pronotes respectful treatnment of wonen and girls.
There are PSA' s that address high school dating violence and
bul I yi ng behavi or.

8:53: 20 AM

SENATOR GARDNER sai d when she visited schools she asked if they
were in conpliance with the newy nandated suicide prevention
training and what strategies they were using to deal wth
bul I yi ng. The schools said they were working with the Social and
Enotional Learning (SEL) program that focuses on hel ping kids
identify their own enotional state and to understand other's
enotional states. She read the list of who is mandated to report
under AS 47.17.020.

8:55:33 AM

JESSI CA LAMASTER, Executive Director, Haven House, Hormer
Al aska, testified in support of SB 216. She said she is a nenber
of the Alaska Network on Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault,
chair of the Alaska Children's Alliance, and a nother of a
toddler. She said she has interviewed hundreds of sexually
abused children and it is their voices that conpel her to
testify in support of the bill. She related that sonme children
do not have safe adults in their lives or they do not know how
to talk about their abuse. Erin's Law will reduce the stigna of
tal king about sexual abuse and teach children that it is ok to
tell, that adults care and will protect them

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked her for her work. He said he is surprised
that sone children have no one safe to talk to.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2014



SENATOR GARDNER said she knows of children who conme into state
custody and the adults in their famly cannot think of a safe
person to take care of them

8:59:19 AM

FLORA RODDY, Menber , Education Support Staff Association

Fai rbanks North Star  School District, Fai r banks, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 216. She said she is also a nenber of
NEA and NEA-Al aska, which supports the bill. She shared a
personal story of abuse. She said this legislation is inportant
because it touches many lives. "All children need to know how to
find someone they can trust to tell and make this stop."

CHAI R STEVENS appreci ated Ms. Roddy's testinony.

CAREN  ROBI NSON, Executive Director, Alaska Wnen's Lobby,
Juneau, Al aska, testified in support of SB 216. She rel ated that
many Lobby nenbers helped to devel op sone of the early prograns
designed to use in schools. She spoke highly of the support of
the Governor and Lauree Mrton, as well as the Council on
Donestic Violence staff's ability to help carry out this policy.

She provided history of Alaska's efforts to conbat donestic
vi ol ence and sexual assault and shared how far Al aska has cone.
She recalled past efforts to stop donestic violence through
education and by developing a curriculum to address it. She
shared a three-pronged approach; teacher training, parent
training, children training. She highlighted strong education
programs in Bethel, Kenai, Fairbanks, and Juneau.

She told stories of discovering who the perpetrators were; the
director of a youth program in Juneau, the assistant attorney
general, the president of the school board, the director of Big
Brothers, Big Sisters, mnisters, and famly nenbers, as well as
the | ead sexual assault investigator. Since then, the statute of
limtations |law has been elimnated as it pertains to child
sexual assault.

She reported that today physicians ask children if they are safe
at hone, teachers are required to report, many children |earn
about good touch and bad touch, reports of donestic violence
result in arrests, offenders are |ocked up, shelters exist, and
people are telling their stories. The Governor and others have
responded and victins are not alone in the state any nore. She
stressed that it is tinme to put a curriculumin all schools and
have systens in place to prosecute cases that conme to |ight.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2014



9: 08: 43 AM
CHAIR STEVENS thanked M. Robinson. He inquired if good
reporting yields high rates of abuse.

M5. ROBINSON commented that there is a strong reporting system
in Alaska now. The Council and its executive director are
strong. She related that the Council was set up under Governor
Hanmond and Terry MIller. It was supposed to be nade up of five
menbers with comm ssioners at the table. She opined that experts
and conmi ssioners need to sit at the table. There is a strong
shelter network with 21 progranms. This issue has been brought to
the forefront by donestic viol ence prograns.

9:12: 25 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that society is an observer of this
problem noting the recidivism rate is 80 percent. He said
Governor Parnell has nade this issue a cornerstone of his
adm ni stration. He requested stronger support for his goals.

He asked Ms. Robinson to nanme two priorities surrounding this
probl em

M5. ROBINSON agreed that the Governor has been a strong | eader
in this issue, as well as have past governors. She referred to
working with then-Senator Parnell to help pass the 1996 Donestic
Viol ence Laws. She stressed the inportance of taking this issue
seriously and funding support systens; there nust be support
services in place. She shared a personal story. She encouraged
bringing the victine to the table and allowing them to have
t heir say.

9:16: 59 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated his belief in capital punishnment. He
submtted that sexual abusers have "taken a life". He spoke of
the cycle of abuse. He suggested that sexual abuse is worse than
taking a life.

M5. ROBI NSON suggested that, "W have to get to our boys early.”
She said it is inmportant to have progranms in school to get young
men into counseling. She shared a personal story about abuse in
her famly. It is inportant to nake sure young boys learn to
make better choices.

SENATOR GARDNER commented about a possible repercussion of
capital punishnment; a child could be told, "If you tell

sonething very bad wll happen.”™ She questioned what would
happen if daddy is the perpetrator. She said it involves

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2014



conplicated enotions and the abuse is not the entire person. She
mai ntai ned that the consequences should be swift and conplete
but execution is not the answer.

M5. ROBINSON shared a story and concluded that when the
perpetrator gets out of jail, access to young boys nust stop.

9:22:37 AM

CHAI R STEVENS cl osed public testinony. He said he wants to hear
from school districts, deal with the fiscal note, and take up
the amendnents in a new comrttee substitute.

CHAI R STEVENS held SB 216 in comm ttee.

HB 162- TEACHER TENURE

9:23: 33 AM
CHAI R STEVENS announced the consi derati on of HB 162.

LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), Juneau, Al aska, answered questions
related to HB 162.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the departnment has a position on the
bill.

MR. MORSE said the departnent does not have a stance on the bill
because tenure does not affect the departnent. It does affect
teachers and districts.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if tenure is portable after a teacher
nmoves to a new district.

MR. MORSE said there is a two-year waiting tine after noving to
a new district.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the psychol ogy of that provision

MR. MORSE explained that the statute provides that the teacher
must neet the performance standards of the new school district.
Local boards can check to see that these are net.

9:28: 04 AM

CHAIR STEVENS asked if the bill affects that 2-year tenure
provi si on.

MR. MORSE said the provision is currently in statute.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2014



CHAI R STEVENS noted Representative WIson suggested that tenure
should be up to the district.

9:28: 57 AM
DI ANE H RSHBERG Director, Center for Al aska Education Policy
Research, Institute of Social and Economc Research (ISER

University of Al aska-Anchorage, Anchorage, Al aska, provided
information related to HB 162. She referred to a survey about
whet her tenure would affect teachers' perception about their
jobs. She described the paraneters of the survey, which had
close to 1,600 responses. For rural first-year teachers, 155 out
of 558, or 19 percent, said tenure rules would inpact their
decision to stay or go. Another 39 percent said "maybe." She
assumed many of those teachers don't understand the inpact of
tenure rules. She pointed out that teacher turnover rates are
very high in rural districts.

She related that when surveying teachers in the five wurban
districts, of 890 teachers, 16 percent said tenure rules would
affect their views, and 22 percent said they were not famliar
with the proposal. O 109 first year teachers, 20 percent said
it would affect their views, 30 percent said they did not know
enough, and 18 percent said "naybe." She concluded that the 20
percent was significant in there is currently not a turnover
probl emin urban districts.

She opined that neasuring the quality of teachers needs to be
done in partnership with the wuniversity and wth districts
wi thout making teachers nore anxious. She said nmany teachers
left the profession when the teacher evaluation video taping
system was initiated. She enphasized that changes do affect how
t eachers view whether or not they will stay on the job.

She questioned if teacher support should be part of the bill
such as strengt heni ng professional devel opnent.

9: 34: 52 AM
CHAI R STEVENS thanked Dr. Hirshberg. He noted public testinony
woul d be continued at a | ater date.

CHAI R STEVENS held HB 162 in conmttee.
9: 35:39 AM
There being nothing further to cone before the commttee, Chair

Stevens adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee at
9:35 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2014



